
Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:32 p.m. on 
Tuesday, April 8, 2025. 
 

ATTENDANCE 

 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Commissioners George Dunlap,  

Arthur Griffin, Laura J. Meier, Elaine Powell,  
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  Vice-Chair Leigh Altman 

Commissioner Vilma D. Leake 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Mark Jerrell, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
 
25-0213 PARK AND RECREATION COMMISSION BUDGET PRIORITIES 
 
 
The Board received information regarding the FY2026 budget priorities from the Park and 
Recreation Commission. 
 
Background:  Each year as part of the County's budget process, advisory boards are provided the 
opportunity to present their budget priorities to the Board of County Commissioners.  A 
representative of the Park and Recreation Commission (PRC) will summarize the advisory 
board's FY26 budget priorities.   
 
Kip Kiser, Chair, Ann Harrison, Vice Chair, and Cowden Rayburn, Executive Secretary, gave the 
presentation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

 

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Powell thanked them for their commitment. She asked if there were specific asks for 
seniors. Mr. Rayburn said it was difficult to nail down specific requests. He said they heard all the 
time how the therapeutic programming helped different families. Commissioner Powell said that 
part of the increase was for safety, security, and customer service; she said she kept hearing about 
lighting, which she felt was sometimes good or bad. She mentioned talking to the staff about being 
specific about where they placed it. With the CIP recommendations, she said they were all 
important, but some should include community partners. She said she was surprised to not see a 
regional recreation center included. Mr. Kiser said they were very expensive, and it would be their 
whole budget. He said there was a serious need for community recreation centers, so that was 
where their interest went. He said originally, they had four planned, and had two at the time that 
were very popular. He said the YMCAs were somewhat of a replacement for regional recreation 
centers. He said there was a budget issue, and it was difficult to advocate for a $70 to 100 million 
center with the budget restraints.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked if there was more detail in the CIP plan or if their main 
priority was to repair parks. She asked if there was an equity schedule that detailed the priority of 
parks. She asked if there was a life expectancy of those parks that fit into their budget priorities, 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

given that the CIP spanned over five years. Mr. Kiser said they were planning to do a Playbook 
update, and some of the items would answer some of the questions she had. He said they would be 
discussing that at future meetings.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked how many times they had recommended the third-party broker 
position. Mr. Kiser said it had been over three years. He said he didn’t know if there had been any 
solution. Commissioner Meier asked what their overall financial ask was. Mr. Rayburn said he didn’t 
have a number at the moment.  
 
Commissioner Griffin mentioned that some of their slides dealt with people instead of land. He 
asked if there were specifics pertaining to the people. He said with their recommendations, it 
would be nice to know what the “people” costs would be, as far as how many and what type. He 
said he was supportive of the regional recreation centers; he said there should be a way for them 
to figure that out at some point, especially for similar programming in the north, east, and 
southwest.  He asked County Manager Diorio if it was still a five-year rolling CIP. County Manager 
Diorio said yes, what was presented was for FY2030. Mr. Kiser said it would take more maintenance 
and people for repairs. He said they didn’t prepare for necessary needs assessments, but it may 
have been part of the answer. He said that for the regional recreation centers, they mentioned 
Ramble Wood as one of the sites.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said it would be helpful to understand a vision of how far in the 
future they planned to do regional recreation centers. County Manager Diorio said the Meck 
Playbook drove all of the plans. She said they cost a lot to build and run, and it was her priority that 
they focus on the community recreation centers and neighborhood parks that required investments 
first. Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked when the next Meck Playbook would be. Nick 
Walker, Park and Recreation Director,  said they would put out for a consultant over the summer. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said she wanted the County to be an employer that didn’t 
employ people based on how many they could get to work without paying them benefits. She said 
she wanted to know the price tag for those who wanted to be full-time. She said she wanted the 
County to be known for paying people a livable wage. County Manager Diorio said it was based on 
the need in the department. She said the Park and Recreation Department did ask about 
transitioning some of their limited part-time employees to full-time, and they were considering that 
for the 2026 budget.  
 
Chair Jerrell asked regarding regional recreation centers, because of the cost, if it could pull away 
from resources to repair and replace the centers that they had. County Manager Diorio said it was 
two different buckets, but it did have a bit of an impact. She said they had to make sure the other 
centers they had were just as nice, and she didn’t feel they were there yet. Chair Jerrell asked what 
interaction/relationship they had with the Citizens’ Capital Budget Advisory Committee (CCBAC). 
Mr. Kiser said there was none. He said it was a sore spot for him. County Manager Diorio clarified 
what the CCBAC’s purpose was. She said they didn’t review what was submitted by individual 
commissions. Chair Jerrell noted how, from Mr. Kiser’s perspective, it was important for them to 
have a relationship. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said it was important for the public to understand what was taking place. He 
said CCBAC didn’t have a responsibility or obligation to the Park and Recreation Committee.  
 
Chair Jerrell said they had hashed out information that they didn’t think they had access to. He said 
they may not be where they wanted to be, but they were further along.  
 
 
 
25-0195                  FY2026-2030 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) WILL BE PROVIDED. 
 
Background:  An update on the Fy2026-2030 CIP will be provided. 
  



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

David Boyd, Chief Financial Officer gave the presentation. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Dunlap asked concerning 2029, in addition to the 2-cent tax increase for CMS, if 
there was a 1-cent increase for capital projects. Mr. Boyd said in 2028, there would be a 2-cent 
increase for CMS and a 1-cent increase for County projects in 2029. Commissioner Dunlap asked 
if a penny still generated $18 million a year. Mr. Boyd said a penny generated $30 million. 
Commissioner Dunlap asked what they would have to reduce the project to in order to avoid 
the 1-cent tax increase in 2029. Mr. Boyd said he didn’t have an amount at the moment. He said 
most of the CIP was funded by debt, which was paid for over 20 years.   
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said they were able to borrow less than what they had 
planned, which was good. She wanted to know how they could even it out, so they didn’t have 
jumps between the general fund and CIP. She asked if there was a 2027 increase. Mr. Boyd said 
no, it was all they had projected. He said they had one in 2024, 2025, and 2 years of no increase. 
He said they borrowed $150 million less at that time to avoid interest. He said they were 
recommending less borrowing at the time for lower interest rates to be able to add things to the 
CIP. He said they had a fixed amount of the tax rate at 11.57 cents to go to the general fund to 
pay the debt service and cash-funded capital projects.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said there was a $200 million net difference between last year and the 
current year. He asked if the numbers were changing due to compound interest. Mr. Boyd 
showed slide 18, stating they were changing due to projects and escalation, due to the timing of 
projects. He said there were a lot of moving parts between last year and this year. 
Commissioner Griffin asked if there was any way, for example, in year 3, how much capacity the 
County would have related to debt service to pay. Mr. Boyd said the current plan maxed out 
what they could borrow by 2030. Commissioner Griffin asked if debt service decreased. Mr. 
Boyd said yes, but they planned to borrow faster than what they were paying off.  
 
Commissioner Meier, on page 7, asked why they recommended $30 million in 2029 and 2030. 
Mr. Boyd said the recommendation was that they have $30 million for land acquisition every 
year starting in 2026 through 2030. He said they already had some money in the plan, so they 
didn’t need to add money in the first three years. Commissioner Meier asked if the 
recommendation was coming from Park and Recreation. Mr. Boyd said there was no right 
answer to how much land they needed to acquire. County Manager Diorio said the 
recommendation had always been $30 million. Commissioner Meier asked when they would 
start looking at 2031. Mr. Boyd said they would start next year but would begin conversations in 
September. He said they knew much of what would be requested. Commissioner Meier said 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

they couldn’t predict anything right now, but how were they allowing for all the fluctuations. 
Mr. Boyd said it would be shortsighted to decide now. He said this would give them an 
opportunity to adjust. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked if, with the land acquisition, how they determined 
which parts of the County they wanted to invest in. She asked what the process and rationale 
were behind the land being purchased. County Manager Diorio said they had priorities of land 
and areas they wanted to go after. She said Assets and Facilities Management (AFM) was 
opportunistic, but didn’t know exactly where they would be. Commissioner Townsend-Ingram 
asked if it made sense to purchase land that wasn’t on a bus or train line that would help the 
priority areas they were trying to help. County Manager Diorio said they bought land primarily 
for parks and open space and that they weren’t looking to buy land for transportation or in 
other counties.  
 
Commissioner Powell said it was a good time to mention that when they're looking at FY2030, 
would there be any land left to buy. She said they were almost fully built out. She said it was 
urgent that they had money for land acquisition to preserve natural resources. She asked if the 
money was for the Environmental Leadership Action Plan (ELAP). County Manager Diorio said 
yes. Commissioner Powell asked, when looking at the deep energy retrofit dollars, why would 
they spend $2 million on the Hwy 16 Park & Rec Admin Office Building when it was built in the 
1950s. She asked the same of the Aquatic Center. She asked if they did a deep dive on how 
much it would benefit. Mark Hahn, Director of Asset and Facilities Management, said it was 
beginning with the replacements of building systems. He said there were incremental costs to 
make it more energy efficient, and that was where the return on investment came in. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap asked, given how the market was at the time of the meeting, was it wise 
for them to do all that was proposed. Mr. Boyd said they didn’t have any other information to 
tell them what they should have done. He said they had already assumed a cost escalation for 
projects; they just didn’t know which ones and for how much. Commissioner Dunlap asked 
about land acquisition and what happened to the other general land requests. County Manager 
Diorio said it would be in the project directly. Mr. Boyd said there may have been some library 
ones that were covered directly in certain land acquisition lines.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked about the CPCC line item from last year to the current year, FY 25, 
26, 27, totaling $168 million, and $126 million previously; there was a difference of $42 million. 
He asked if it was inflationary interest or new projects that made it go up to the $42 million. Mr. 
Boyd said it was related to the public safety training facility.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for clarification on page 10, for the three projects 
with one left out, and how it got chosen to be left out. Mr. Boyd said they took the lowest-
ranked project and pushed it out a year.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said the 2-cent raise in 2028 and the 1-cent raise in 2029 were 
scary for residents and asked for a “what if” visual model based on some of his assumptions. 
County Manager Diorio said the 2-cent increase would impact school projects, while the 1-cent 
increase was for the County. She asked if they should do the analysis for CMS and the County’s 
projects.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap mentioned how the increases were baked in and said some were pushed 
out because it allowed them to fund them at a slower pace. Mr. Boyd said the school projects 
were on track and funded with bonds, so nothing had changed with that funding model. He said 
the 2-cent raise was for the school projects and debt.   
 
Commissioner Powell wondered if they should invest in the retrofits. She asked how much 
standard maintenance was. Mr. Hahn said it was 70 to 80 percent of the funding. He said it was 
capital replacements, and when the systems aged out, they had to be replaced.  
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

Commissioner Meier said that the previous year, they placed $14 million in the hole. She asked 
if it could happen in their next budget cycle of .5 cents. She asked if there was nothing until 
2028. Mr. Boyd said yes, for capital. County Manager Diorio said yes, but they couldn’t predict 
what was going to happen with property tax increases in the future.  
 
Chair Jerrell, referencing slide 20, said there needed to be a deeper dive because he felt they 
had more questions than feedback. He said they needed more time to recommend changes. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said it was fair that there were questions. He said around the 1 cent in 
2029, the 2028 tax was baked in. He said once they did the analysis, they would either approve 
it or not. Mr. Boyd said it would show how much the plan was in the hole and what they wanted 
to take out to close the hole.  
 
Mr. Boyd said he would ask them to consider that it was a decision that didn’t need to be made 
until 2029. He said there was a long runway to evaluate what it looked like, considering where 
they were at the time, and that a lot of things could change between then and 2029. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

25-
0196                  CITIZEN’S CAPITAL BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FY2026-2030 CAPITAL  
                           IMPROVEMENT PLAN. 
 
Background:  The Citizen's Capital Budget Advisory Committee will discuss their review and 
recommendations of the FY2026-2030 Capital Improvement projects submitted by agency 
partners. 
 
Gabriel Mathless, Chair, gave the presentation. 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2025   

Comments 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said she wanted to thank them for the service they were 
providing. 
 
Commissioner Meier thanked them and said it was part of democracy that they had citizens 
watching them.  
 
Commissioner Powell asked what they wanted them to know about the process. Mr. Mathless said 
it worked and was well designed, but evaluating it was difficult because they weren’t in the 
trenches with them. He said being able to tie back and understand their projects would be helpful. 
He asked the Board to ask the agencies to tie back their projects to their priorities. Commissioner 
Powell said there was a time when this was one of the most important committees in the County. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap commended him for his efforts. He said he supported their 
recommendation.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said what they laid out was appropriate because he represented not just 
them but the County. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said having representation of individuals from different 
backgrounds was critical, and hoped there was a tool to evaluate towards capital improvement and 
the community. Mr. Mathless said the intent behind the community was to grab people from 
different walks of life who had experience in capital projects. 
 
Chair Jerrell thanked him. He said he hoped he felt the support of the Board.  
 
 
 
25-0225  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 
 
 
 

            
_________________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board                                                              Mark Jerrell, Chair 
 


